Hortonworks Data Platform

Ambari User's Guide

(May 23, 2014)

docs.hortonworks.com

Hortonworks Data Platform : Ambari User's Guide

Copyright © 2012-2014 Hortonworks, Inc. Some rights reserved.

The Hortonworks Data Platform, powered by Apache Hadoop, is a massively scalable and 100% open source platform for storing, processing and analyzing large volumes of data. It is designed to deal with data from many sources and formats in a very quick, easy and cost-effective manner. The Hortonworks Data Platform consists of the essential set of Apache Hadoop projects including MapReduce, Hadoop Distributed File System (HDFS), HCatalog, Pig, Hive, HBase, Zookeeper and Ambari. Hortonworks is the major contributor of code and patches to many of these projects. These projects have been integrated and tested as part of the Hortonworks Data Platform release process and installation and configuration tools have also been included.

Unlike other providers of platforms built using Apache Hadoop, Hortonworks contributes 100% of our code back to the Apache Software Foundation. The Hortonworks Data Platform is Apache-licensed and completely open source. We sell only expert technical support, training and partner-enablement services. All of our technology is, and will remain free and open source.

Please visit the Hortonworks Data Platform page for more information on Hortonworks technology. For more information on Hortonworks services, please visit either the Support or Training page. Feel free to Contact Us directly to discuss your specific needs.



Except where otherwise noted, this document is licensed under Creative Commons Attribution ShareAlike 3.0 License. http://creativecommons.org/licenses/by-sa/3.0/legalcode

Table of Contents

1. Introducing Ambari Web	1
1.1. Architecture	. 1
1.1.1. Sessions	. 2
1.2. Starting and Accessing Ambari Web	. 2
2. Monitoring and Managing HDP Clusters Using Ambari Web	. 3
2.1. Viewing Metrics on the Dashboard	3
2.1.1. Scanning System Metrics	3
2.1.2. Viewing Heatmaps	10
2.1.3. Scanning Services Status	11
2.2. Monitoring and Managing Services	11
2.2.1. Starting and Stopping All Services	13
2.2.2. Selecting a Service	13
2.2.3. Viewing Summary, Alert, and Health Information	17
2.2.4. Configuring Services	19
2.3. Managing Hosts	27
2.3.1. Working with Hosts	27
2.3.2. Determining Host Status	27
2.3.3. Filtering the Hosts List	28
2.3.4. Performing Host-Level Actions	28
2.3.5. Viewing Components on a Host	29
2.3.6. Decommissioning Masters and Slaves	31
2.3.7. Deleting a Host from a Cluster	32
2.3.8. Setting Maintenance Mode	33
2.3.9. Adding Hosts to a Cluster	36
2.4. Administering Ambari	36
2.4.1. Managing Ambari Web Users	37
2.4.2. Enabling High Availability of HDP Components	38
2.4.3. Enabling Kerberos Security	38
2.4.4. Checking Stack and Component Versions	39
2.4.5. Checking Service User Accounts and Groups	40
2.4.6. Accessing Jobs Monitoring Information	40
3. Using Nagios With Hadoop	42
3.1. Basic Nagios Architecture	42
3.2. Installing Nagios	43
3.3. Configuration File Locations	43
3.4. Configuring Nagios Alerts For Hadoop Services	43
3.5. Nagios Alerts For Hadoop Services	44
3.5.1. HDFS Service Alerts	44
3.5.2. NameNode HA Alerts (Hadoop 2 only)	49
3.5.3. YARN Alerts (Hadoop 2 only)	50
3.5.4. MapReduce2 Alerts (Hadoop 2 only)	52
3.5.5. MapReduce Service Alerts (Hadoop 1 only)	54
3.5.6. HBase Service Alerts	56
3.5.7. Hive Alerts	59
3.5.8. WebHCat Alerts	59
3.5.9. Oozie Alerts	60
3.5.10. Ganglia Alerts	60
3.5.11. Nagios Alerts	61

3.5.12. ZooKeeper Alerts	61
3.5.13. Ambari Alerts	62

List of Figures

1.1. Architectural Overview 1

List of Tables

2.1. Ambari Service Metrics and Descriptions	4
2.2. Ambari Cluster-Wide Metrics and Descriptions	. 6
2.3. Links to More Metrics for HDP Services	9
2.4. Service Status	11
2.5. Host Roles Required for Added Services	15
2.6. Validation Rules for Rolling Restart Parameters	24

1. Introducing Ambari Web

Hadoop is a large scale distributed data storage and processing infrastructure using clusters of commodity hosts networked together. Monitoring and managing such complex distributed systems is a non-trivial task. To help you deal with the complexity, Apache Ambari collects a wide range of information from the cluster's nodes and services and presents them to you in an easy to read and use centralized web interface, Ambari Web. Ambari Web displays information such as service-specific summaries, graphs, and alerts. It also allows you to perform basic management tasks such as starting and stopping services, adding hosts to your cluster, and updating service configurations.



Note

At this time, Ambari Web is supported only in deployments made using the Ambari Install Wizard.

1.1. Architecture

The Ambari Server serves as the collection point for data from across your cluster. Each host has a copy of the Ambari Agent - either installed automatically by the Install wizard or manually - which allows the Ambari Server to control each host. In addition, each host has a copy of Ganglia Monitor (gmond), which collects metric information that is passed to the Ganglia Connector, and then on to the Ambari Server.

Figure 1.1. Architectural Overview



1.1.1. Sessions

Ambari Web is a client-side JavaScript application, which calls the Ambari REST API (accessible from the Ambari Server) to access cluster information and perform cluster operations. After authenticating to Ambari Web, the application authenticates to the Ambari Server and communication between the browser and server occur asynchronously via the REST API.



Note

Ambari Web sessions do not timeout since the application is constantly accessing the REST API, which resets the session timeout. As well, if there is a period of Ambari Web inactivity, the Ambari Web interface is automatically refreshed. Therefore you must **explicitly sign out** of the Ambari Web interface to destroy the Ambari session with the server.



1.2. Starting and Accessing Ambari Web

Generally the Ambari Server and Ambari Web are started as part of the installation process. If for some reason the server is not running, on the Ambari Server machine, type:

ambari-server start

To access Ambari Web, open a supported browser and enter the Ambari Web URL:

http://{your.ambari.server}:8080

Enter your user name and password. If this is the first time Ambari Web is accessed, use the default values, admin/admin. These values can be changed, and new users provisioned, using the **Admin** view in Ambari Web itself.

2. Monitoring and Managing HDP Clusters Using Ambari Web

This guide describes how to use Ambari Web features to monitor and manage your HDP cluster. To navigate, select one of the following feature tabs located at the top of the Ambari main window. A selected tab appears white.

Ambari mycluster 10 ops	Dashboard	Services	Hosts	Jobs	Admin	💄 admin 👻
-------------------------	-----------	----------	-------	------	-------	-----------

- Viewing Metrics on the Dashboard
- Monitoring and Managing Services
- Managing Hosts
- Monitoring Jobs
- Administering Ambari

2.1. Viewing Metrics on the Dashboard

Ambari Web displays the **Dashboard** page as the home page. Use the Dashboard to view the operating status of your cluster in the following three ways:

- Scanning System Metrics
- Scanning Service Status
- Viewing Heatmaps

2.1.1. Scanning System Metrics

View **Metrics** that indicate the operating status of your cluster on a customizable mashup. Each metrics widget displays status information for a single service in your HDP cluster. The Ambari dashboard displays all metrics for the HDFS, YARN, HBase, and Storm services, and cluster-wide metrics by default.



Note

Metrics data for Storm is buffered and sent as a batch to Ambari every 5 minutes. Anticipate a five-minute delay for appearance of Storm metrics after adding the Storm service.

You can add and remove individual widgets, and rearrange the mashup by dragging and dropping each widget to a new location in the mashup.

	Metrice Heatmap	S			
 MapReduce2 Tez HBase 1 Hive WebHCat Falcon 	HDFS Disk Usage	DataNodes Live	HDFS Links NameNode Secondary NameNode 1 DataNodes More	Memory Usage	Network Usage
 Falcon Storm Oozie Ganglia Nagios ZooKeeper 	CPU Usage	Cluster Load	NameNode Heap	NameNode RPC 0.33 ms	NameNode CPU WIO
Pig Sqoop Actions -	NameNode Uptime 16.9 min	HBase Master Heap	HBase Links HBase Master 1 RegionServers Master Web UI More	HBase Ave Load	HBase Master Uptime 524.9 s
	ResourceManager Heap	ResourceManager Uptime 1.1 d	NodeManagers Live 1/1	YARN Memory	Supervisors Live

Status information appears as simple pie and bar charts, more complex charts showing usage and load, sets of links to additional data sources, and values for operating parameters such as uptime and average RPC queue wait times. Most widgets displays a single fact by default. For example, HDFS Disk Usage displays a load chart and a percentage figure. The Ambari Dashboard includes metrics for the following services:

Table 2.1. Ambari Service Metrics and Descriptions

Metric:	Description:
HDFS	
HDFS Disk Usage	The Percentage of DFS used, which is a combination of DFS and non-DFS used.
Data Nodes Live	The number of DataNodes live, as reported from the NameNode.
NameNode Heap	The percentage of NameNode JVM Heap used.
NameNode RPC	The average RPC queue latency.
NameNode CPU WIO	The percentage of CPU Wait I/O.
NameNode Uptime	The NameNode uptime calculation.
YARN ^a	
ResourceManager Heap	The percentage of ResourceManager JVM Heap used.
ResourceManager Uptime	The ResourceManager uptime calculation.
NodeManagers Live	The number of DataNodes live, as reported from the ResourceManager.
YARN Memory	The percentage of available YARN memory (used vs. total available).
HBase	

Description:
The percentage of NameNode JVM Heap used.
The average load on the HBase server.
The HBase Master uptime calculation.
The number of HBase regions in transition.
The number of Supervisors live, as reported from the Nimbus server.
The percentage of JobTracker JVM Heap used.
The number of TaskTrackers live, as reported from the JobTracker.

^aHDP 2.0 and 2.1 Stacks ^bHDP 2.1 Stack

^cHDP 1.3 Stack

2.1.1.1. Drilling Into Metrics for a Service

• To see more detailed information about a service, hover your cursor over a Metrics widget.

More detailed information about the service displays, as shown in the following example:



- To remove a widget from the mashup, click the white X.
- To edit the display of information in a widget, click the pencil icon. For more information about editing a widget, see Customizing Metrics Display .

2.1.1.2. Viewing Cluster-Wide Metrics

Cluster Metrics display information that represents your whole cluster. The Ambari Dashboard includes widgets that display the following cluster-wide metrics:



Table 2.2. Ambari Cluster-Wide Metrics and Descriptions

Metric:	Description:
Memory Usage	The cluster-wide memory utilization, including memory cached, swapped, used, shared.
Network Usage	The cluster-wide network utilization, including in-and-out.
CPU Usage	Cluster-wide CPU information, including system, user and wait IO.
Cluster Load	Cluster-wide Load information, including total number of nodes. total number of CPUs, number of running processes and 1-min Load.

- To remove a widget from the dashboard, click the white X.
- Hover your cursor over each cluster-wide metric to magnify the chart or itemize the widget display.
- To remove or add metric items from each cluster-wide metric widget, select the item on the widget legend.
- To see a larger view of the chart, select the magnifying glass icon.

Ambari displays a larger version of the widget in a pop-out window, as shown in the following example:

Anbai							Bigs out
+ e HDPS		03.0% capacity tree				2	
 MapReduce 	17 of 17 trackers b	Cluster Load			-		
* @ Hilans	17 region servers s						
	Hive Cherd Hive Be	40					W.,
	Oozie Cherr Dozie					~ 1 × 2	
	according to the	80			t	7 7 12	
					H	~ 0	
			11:30	11:45	12:00	12:15	
		a 🔒 2-614		nda 0	avg 4.852	max 29.42	
		The second			arg 4.481. arg 3.513		
						OK	
one chooseny contract	Andre Stati Andre Stati Stati s	re teel nagectes dution					

Use the pop-up window in the same ways that you use cluster-wide metric widgets on the dashboard.

To close the widget pop-up window, choose OK.

2.1.1.3. Adding a Widget to the Dashboard

To replace a widget that has been removed from the dashboard:

1. Select the Metrics drop-down, as shown in the following example:



- 2. Choose Add+.
- 3. Select a metric, such as Region in Transition.
- 4. Choose Apply.

2.1.1.4. Resetting the Dashboard

To reset all widgets on the dashboard to display default settings:

1. Select the Metrics drop-down, as shown in the following example:



- 2. Choose Edit.
- 3. Choose Reset all widgets to default.

2.1.1.5. Viewing Metrics in Ganglia

To view metrics for your cluster using the Ganglia UI:

- 1. Select the Metrics drop-down:
- 2. Choose Edit.
- 3. Choose View Metrics in Ganglia.

2.1.1.6. Customizing Metrics Display

To customize the way a service widget displays metrics information:

- 1. Hover your cursor over a service widget.
- 2. Select the pencil-shaped, edit icon that appears in the upper-right corner.

The Customize Widget pop-up window displays properties that you can edit, as shown in the following example.

Custo	mize Widget					¥
Custo	mize widget					^
Edit the	percentage thresholds to	change the color	of current pie chart. Er	nter two numbers b	etween 0 to 100	
0	85		95		100	
						_
					Cancel App	by
1	DataNodes				Aut	

3. Follow the instructions in the Customize Widget pop-up to customize widget appearance.

In this example, you can adjust the thresholds at which the HDFS Capacity bar chart changes color, from green to orange to red.

- 4. To save your changes and close the editor, choose **Apply**.
- 5. To close the editor without saving any changes, choose Cancel.



Note

Not all widgets support editing.

2.1.1.7. Viewing More Metrics for your HDP Stack

The HDFS Links and HBase Links widgets list HDP components for which links to more metrics information, such as thread stacks, logs and native component UIs are available. For example, you can link to NameNode, Secondary NameNode, and DataNode components for HDFS, using the links shown in the following example:

Metrics -	Heatmaps		
HDFS Links	s	HBase Links	
Nar Secondar 1 Da	neNode ry NameNode ntaNodes	HBase Master 1 RegionServers Master Web UI	
	More •	More •	•
	NameNoo NameNoo NameNoo Thread St	e Ul e logs le JMX acks	

Choose the **More** drop-down to select from the list of links available for each service. The Ambari Dashboard includes **More** links to metrics for the following services:

Table 2.3. Links to More Metrics for HDP Services

Service:	Metric:	Description:
HDFS		
	NameNode UI	Links to the NameNode UI.
	NameNode Logs	Links to the NameNode logs.
	NameNode JMX	Links to the NameNode JMX servlet.
	Thread Stacks	Links to the NameNode thread stack traces.
HBase		
	HBase Master UI	Links to the HBase Master UI.
	HBase Logs	Links to the HBase logs.
	ZooKeeper Info	Links to ZooKeeper information.
	HBase Master JPX	Links to the HBase Master JMX servlet.
	Debug Dump	Links to debug information.
	Thread Stacks	Links to the HBase Master thread stack traces.

2.1.2. Viewing Heatmaps

Heatmaps provides a graphical representation of your overall cluster utilization using simple color coding.

Dashboard	Heatmaps	Services	Hosts 2	Jobs	Admin	
Select Metric	- Host D	isk Space Used	3 %			
0% - 20	0% Defau	Ilt Rack				
20% - 4	40%					
40% - (60%					
60% - 8	80%		c6402	.ambari.apache.org	1	
80% -	100%		OS: re	edhat6	,	
Invalid (data		IP Add	lress: 10.0.2.15		
Not			Host D	Disk Space Used %	: 5.83%	
Applica	ble		Disk: :	5.8%		
Maximum			CPU:	16.4%		
			Compo	ry: 94.0% ments: Ann Timelin	e Server DRPC	
100 %			Serve	. Falcon Server. Ga	anglia Server.	
			Histor	Server, Hive Meta	istore,	
			HiveS	erver2, MySQL Serv	ver, Nagios Server,	
			Nimbu	s, Oozie Server, Re	esourceManager,	
			SNam	eNode, Storm REST	API Server, Storm	
			UI Ser	ver, WebHCat Serve	er, ZooKeeper	
			Serve	r, Ganglia Monitor, S	Supervisor	

A colored block represents each host in your cluster. To see more information about a specific host, hover over the block representing the host in which you are interested. A popup window displays metrics about HDP components installed on that host. Colors displayed in the block represent usage in a unit appropriate for the selected set of metrics. If any data necessary to determine state is not available, the block displays "Invalid Data". Changing the default maximum values for the heatmap lets you fine tune the representation. Use the Select Metric drop-down to select the metric type.

Select N	Metric	Host Disk Space Used %
Host	•)	Default Rack
HDFS		
YARN	• _	
HBase	•	HBase Read Request Count
	80% - 100% Invalid data Not Applicable	HBase Write Request Count HBase Compaction Queue Size HBase Regions HBase Memstore Sizes
Maximum:	_	
100	%	

Heatmaps supports the following metrics:

Metric	Uses
Host/Disk Space Used %	disk.disk_free and disk.disk_total
Host/Memory Used %	memory.mem_free and memory.mem_total
Host/CPU Wait I/O %	cpu.cpu_wio
HDFS/Bytes Read	dfs.datanode.bytes_read
HDFS/Bytes Written	dfs.datanode.bytes_written
HDFS/Garbage Collection Time	jvm.gcTimeMillis
HDFS/JVM Heap MemoryUsed	jvm.memHeapUsedM
YARN/Garbage Collection Time	jvm.gcTimeMillis
YARN / JVM Heap Memory Used	jvm.memHeapUsedM
YARN / Memory used %	UsedMemoryMB and AvailableMemoryMB
HBase/RegionServer read request count	hbase.regionserver.readRequestsCount
HBase/RegionServer write request count	hbase.regionserver.writeRequestsCount
HBase/RegionServer compaction queue size	hbase.regionserver.compactionQueueSize
HBase/RegionServer regions	hbase.regionserver.regions
HBase/RegionServer memstore sizes	hbase.regionserver.memstoreSizeMB

2.1.3. Scanning Services Status

Notice the color of the dot appearing next to each service name in the list of **Services**. The dot color and blinking action indicates operating status of each service. For example, in the Dashboard Widget [3] image, notice green dot next to each service name. The following colors and actions indicate service status:

Table 2.4. Service Status

Color	Name	Status
O	Solid Green	All masters are running
0	Blinking Green	Starting up
A	Solid Red	At least one master is down
A	Blinking Red	Stopping

Click the service name to open the **Services** screen, where you can see more detailed information on each service.

2.2. Monitoring and Managing Services

Use **Services** to monitor and manage selected services running in your Hadoop cluster.

All services installed in your cluster are listed in the leftmost **Services** panel.

🚕 Ambari	mycluster 40 ops		Dashboard	Se	rvices	Hosts 🚺	Jobs	Admin	admir 🛔	1 -
HDFS	Summary Co	nfigs	Quick L	inks	-			S	ervice Actio	ns -
YARN										
MapReduce	2 Summary				Alerts	and Health	Checks			00
Tez	Namet	lode 📀 Started	ł		. N	ameNode ed	t logs	Ok	for about a	3
HBase 1	SName	Node 🥝 Started	t i		* d	irectory statu 6401.ambari.	s on apache.o	ra	minute	9
Hive	DataN	odes 1/1 DataN	lodes Live		õ	K: All Namel	lode dire	ctories are	e active	
WebHCat	NameNode Up	time 21.25 hou	Jrs.		, s	econdary Na	meNode	Ok	for about a	3
Falcon	NameNode H	Heap 190.4 MB	/ 1004.0 MB (19.0%		P	CP OK - 0.00	1	reapone.	minute time on	9
Storm	DataNodes St	atus 1 live / 0	dead / 0		p	ort 50090	/ second	response	e unie on	
Oozie		decommi	ssioning		A P	ercent DataN	odes live	OF	(for about a	3
🔊 Ganglia	Disk Usage	DFS 313.7 MB	7 488.2 GB (0.06%)		× .				minute	9
Nagios		lsed)			0	K: total:<1>,	affected	<0>		
ZooKeeper	Disk Usage DFS U	(Non 27.0 GB / Ised)	488.2 GB (5.53%)		N	ameNode pro 6401 ambari	cess on apache.o	O/	for about a minute	
Pig	Disk Us	age 460.9 GB	/ 488.2 GB (94.40%)		T	CP OK - 0.02	3 second	d response	e time on	·
Sqoop	(Remai	ning)			р	ort 8020				
	Blocks (t	total) 398			N	ameNode We	b UI on	OF	for about a	3
Actions +	Block B	rrors 0 corrupt	/ 0 missing / 398 under		ő	K: Successf	ully acces	ssed nam	enode Web	7
	Total Fil	replicated	1		U		-			
	Directo	ories			🗸 P	ercent DataN	odes with	h Ok	for about a	3
	Upgrade St	atus No pendir	ng upgrade		- s	pace availabi K: total:<1>.	e affected:	<0>	minute	9
	Safe Mode St	atus Not in saf	'e mode							
	Matrice									Q.
	meditus									•
					400			[:		
	372.5 08		D.D1 opava							
	186.2 GB		0.01 ops/s		200					
	Total Space L	Itilization	File Operations	-	E	Block Status	<u>i</u>	н	DFS VO	
					953.6 MB					_
								40		
	0.2 ms									
					476.8 MB			20		
							_			
	RPC		Garbage Collection		JVM	Memory Sta	tus	JVM T	hread Statu	s

Services supports the following tasks:

- Starting and Stopping All Services
- Selecting a Service
- Viewing Summary, Alert, and Health Information
- Configuring Services
- Rolling Restarts
- Using Quick Links
- Analyzing Service Metrics

2.2.1. Starting and Stopping All Services

To start or stop all listed services at once, select **Actions**, then choose **Start All** or **Stop All**, as shown in the following example:



2.2.2. Selecting a Service

Selecting a service name from the list shows current summary, alert, and health information for the selected service. To refresh the monitoring panels and show information about a different service, select a different service name from the list.

Notice the colored dot next to each service name, indicating service operating status and a small, red, numbered rectangle indicating any alerts generated for the service.

2.2.2.1. Adding a Service

The Ambari install wizard installs all available Hadoop services by default. You may choose to deploy only some services initially, then add other services at later times. For example, many customers deploy only core Hadoop services initially. Add Service supports deploying additional services without interrupting operations in your Hadoop cluster. When you have deployed all available services, Add Service displays disabled.

For example, if you are using HDP 2.1 Stack and did not install Falcon or Storm, you can use the **Add Service** capability to add those services to your cluster.

To add a service, select **Actions** -> **Add Service**, then complete the following procedure using the Add Service Wizard.

2.2.2.1.1. Adding a Service to your Hadoop cluster

This example shows the Falcon service selected for addition.

1. Choose Services.

Choose an available service. Alternatively, choose all to add all available services to your cluster. Then, choose Next.

The Add Services wizard displays installed services highlighted green and marked unavailable for selection.

ADD SERVICE WIZARD
Choose Services
Assign Masters
Assign Slaves and Clients
Customize Services
Review
Install, Start and Test
Summary

Choose Services

Choose which serv	ices you wa	int to instan on your cluster.
Service all none	Version	Description
HDFS	2.1.0.2.1	Apache Hadoop Distributed File System
YARN + MapReduce2	2.1.0.2.1	Apache Hadoop NextGen MapReduce (YARN)
✓ Tez	0.4.0.2.1	Tez is the next generation Hadoop Query Processing framework written on top of YARN.
Nagios	3.5.0	Nagios Monitoring and Alerting system
Ganglia	3.5.0	Ganglia Metrics Collection system (RRDTool will be installed too)
✓ Hive + HCat	0.13.0.2.1	Data warehouse system for ad-hoc queries & analysis of large datasets and table & storage management service
✓ HBase	0.98.0.2.1	Non-relational distributed database and centralized service for configuration management & synchronization
✓ Pig	0.12.1.2.1	Scripting platform for analyzing large datasets
☑ Sqoop	1.4.5.2.1	Tool for transferring bulk data between Apache Hadoop and structured data stores such as relational databases
✓ Oozie	4.1.0.2.1	System for workflow coordination and execution of Apache Hadoop jobs. This also includes the installation of the optional Oozie Web Console which relies on and will install the ExtJS Library.
ZooKeeper	3.4.5.2.1	Centralized service which provides highly reliable distributed coordination.
Falcon	0.4.0.2.1	Data management and processing platform
Storm	0.9.1.2.1	Apache Hadoop Stream processing framework

2. In **Assign Masters**, confirm the default host assignment. Alternatively, choose a different host machine to which master components for your selected service will be added. Then, choose Next.

The Add Services Wizard indicates hosts on which the master components for a chosen service will be installed. A service chosen for addition displays as:

• A green label located on the host to which its master components will be added, or

• An active drop-down list on which available host names appear. Using the drop-down, choose an alternate host name, if necessary.

sign Masters	Assign master comp # HiveServer2, Hive	oonents to hosts you want to run them on. Metastore, and WebHCat Server will be host	sted on the same server.
stomize Services	NameNode:	c6401.ambari.apache.org (1.8 ‡	c6401.ambari.apache.org (1.8 GB, 1 cores)
view tall, Start and Test	SNameNode:	c6402.ambari.apache.org (1.8 💠	NameNode HBase Master
mmary	History Server:	c6402.ambari.apache.org (1.8 🗘	c6402 amhari anache oro (1.8.GB, 1.cores)
	ResourceManager:	c6402.ambari.apache.org (1.8 ‡	SNameNode History Server
	App Timeline Server:	c6402.ambari.apache.org (1.8 ‡	ResourceManager App Timeline Server Nagios Server
	Nagios Server:	c6402.ambari.apache.org (1.8 💠	Ganglia Server HiveServer2
	Ganglia Server:	c6402.ambari.apache.org (1.8 ‡	Oozie Server ZooKeeper
	HveServer2:	c6402.ambari.apache.org (1.8 ‡	Falcon Server
	Hive Metastore:	c6402.ambari.apache.org *	c6403.ambari.apache.org (1.8 GB, 1 cores) ZooKeeper
	WebHCat Server:	c6402.ambari.apache.org*	
	HBase Master:	c6401.ambari.apache.org (1.8 ‡	
	Oozie Server:	c6402.ambari.apache.org (1.8 ‡	
	ZooKeeper:	c6401.ambari.apache.org (1.8 ‡	
	ZooKeeper:	c6402.ambari.apache.org (1.8 🗘	
	ZooKeeper:	c6403.ambari.apache.org (1.8	
	Falcon Server:	c6402.ambari.apache.org (1.8 \$	

3. In Assign Slaves and Clients, accept the default assignment of slave and client components to hosts. Then, choose Next.

Alternatively, select hosts to which you want to assign slave and client components.

You must select at least one host for the slave of each service being added.

Table 2.5. Host Roles Required for Added Services

Service Added	Host Role Required
MapReduce	TaskTracker
YARN	NodeManager
HBase	RegionServer

The Add Service Wizard skips and disables the Assign Slaves and Clients step for a service requiring no slave nor client assignment.

DD SERVICE WIZARD	Assign Slaves	and Cl	ients			
Assign Masters Assign Slaves and Clients Customize Services	Assign slave and client comp Hosts that are assigned mas *Client* will install HDFS Client Client, Pig, Sqoop, Oozie Client	oonents to hosts ter components a nt, MapReduce 2 int, ZooKeeper Cl	you want to run the are shown with . Client, YARN Client ient and Falcon Clie	m on. , Tez Client, Hive Clier nt.	nt, HCat Client, HB	ase
leview	Host	all none	all none	all none	all none	all none
mmary	c6401.ambari.apache.org *	DataNode	NodeManager	RegionServer	Supervisor	Client
	c6402.ambari.apache.org *	DataNode	NodeManager	RegionServer	Supervisor	Client
	c6403.ambari.apache.org *	DataNode	NodeManager	RegionServer	Supervisor	Client
				Show: 25 \$	1-3 of 3 M	+ >)
	← Back					Next -

4. In Customize Services, accept the default configuration properties. Then, choose Next.

Alternatively, edit the default values for configuration properties, if necessary.

ADD SERVICE WIZARD Choose Services **Customize Services** Assign Masters We have come up with recommended configurations for the services you selected. Customize them as you see fit. Assign Slaves and Clients Customize Services HDFS YARN MapReduce 2 Hive WebHCat HBase ZooKeeper Oczie Nagios Ganglia Pig Install, Start and Test Falcon Tez Misc Summary Group Falcon Default (3)

Manage Config Groups Filter... Falcon Server Falcon Server c6402.ambari.apache.org Falcon server port 15000 Override Falcon data directory /hadoop/falcon Override Falcon store URI file:///hadoop/falcon/store Override Falcon - Oozie integration Falcon startup.properties Falcon runtime.properties Advanced Custom startup.propertie Custom runtime.propertie + Back

Choose Override to create a configuration group for this service.

5. In Review, make sure the configuration settings match your intentions. Then, choose Deploy.

ADD SERVICE WIZARD Choose Services	Review
Assign Masters	Please review the configuration before installation
Assign Slaves and Clients	
Customize Services Review	Admin Name : admin
Install, Start and Test	Cluster Name : mycluster
Summary	Total Hosts : 3 (0 new)
	Pepositories: Peter Science SciOnsele Linux 5: http://s3.amazonaws.com/dev.hortonworks.com/HDP/centos5/2.x/updates/2.1.1.0 Peter Science Linux 6: http://s3.amazonaws.com/dev.hortonworks.com/HDP/centos5/2.x/updates/2.1.1.0 SLES 11/SUSE 11: http://s3.amazonaws.com/dev.hortonworks.com/HDP/suse11/2.x/updates/2.1.1.0 Services Falcon Science Scie
	← Back Deploy →

6. Monitor the progress of installing, starting, and testing the service. When the service installs and starts successfully, choose Next.

sign Masters	Please wait while the selected	I services are installed and started.	
sign Slaves and Clients			100.% over
stomize Services			100 % 01010
view		Show: All (3)	n Progress (0) Warning (0) Success (3) Fai
tall, Start and Test	Host	Status	Message
nmary	c6401.ambari.apache.org	100%	Success
	c6402.ambari.apache.org	100%	Success
	c6403.ambari.apache.org	100%	Success
		She	ow: 25 \$ 1 - 3 of 3 M ← →

7. Summary displays the results of installing the service. Choose Complete.

ADD SERVICE WIZARD Choose Services	Summary
Assign Masters Assign Slaves and Clients	Important! Restarting Nagios service is required for alerts and notifications to work properly. After clicking on the Complete button to dismiss this wizard, go to Services -> Nagios to restart the Nagios service.
Customize Services	Here is the summary of the install process.
Review Install, Start and Test Summary	The cluster consists of 3 hosts Installed and started services successfully on 3 new hosts Install and start completed in 2 minutes and 53 seconds
	Complete →

8. Restart the Nagios service and any other components having stale configurations.



Important

If you do not restart Nagios service after completing the Add Service Wizard, alerts and notifications may not work properly.

2.2.3. Viewing Summary, Alert, and Health Information

After you select a service, **Summary** tab displays basic information about the selected service.

Summary NameNode 📀 Started SNameNode 🛇 Started DataNodes 1/1 DataNodes Live NameNode Uptime 21.81 hours NameNode Heap 138.8 MB / 1004.0 MB (13.8% used) DataNodes Status 1 live / 0 dead / 0 decommissioning Disk Usage (DFS 313.7 MB / 488.2 GB (0.06%) Used) Disk Usage (Non 27.0 GB / 488.2 GB (5.53%) DFS Used) Disk Usage 460.9 GB / 488.2 GB (94.40%) (Remaining) Blocks (total) 398 Block Errors 0 corrupt / 0 missing / 398 under replicated Total Files + 535 Directories Upgrade Status No pending upgrade Safe Mode Status Not in safe mode

Select a **View Host** link, as shown in the following example, to view components and the host on which the selected service is running.

NameNode Started SNameNode Started DataNodes 1/1 DataNodes Live

2.2.3.1. Alerts and Health Checks

View results of the health checks performed on your cluster by Nagios in **Alerts and Health Checks**. Alerts and Health Checks displays a list of each issue and its rating, sorted first by descending severity, then by descending time. To access more detailed information, select the native Nagios GUI link located at the upper right corner of the panel. Use the Nagios credentials you set up during installation to log in to Nagios.

Alerts and Health Che	cks		°0
NameNode edit logs status on c6401.ambari.apach OK: All NameNode of	directory ne.org directories are activ	OK for about a minut	te
Secondary NameNo TCP OK - 0.002 sec	de process cond response time	OK for about a minut e on port 50090	te
NameNode Web Ul o c6401.ambari.apach OK: Successfully ad	on ne.org ccessed namenode	OK for about a minut	te
 Percent DataNodes available OK: total:<1>, affect 	with space ted:<0>	OK for about a minut	te
HDFS capacity utiliz OK: DFSUsedGB:<0	ation .3>, DFSTotalGB:<	OK for about a minut <461.2>	te

2.2.4. Configuring Services

Select a service, then select **Configs** to view and update configuration properties for the selected service. For example, select MapReduce2, then select Configs. Expand a config category to view configurable service properties.

Summary Conf	gs	Quick Links+	Service Actions -
Group MapRed	uce2 Default (3) - Mar	nage Config Groups	Filter
History Server	r		
History Server	c6402.ambari.apache.	org	
 General 			
Default virtual memory for a job' map-task	342 s	MB Override Oundo	
Default virtual memory for a job' reduce-task	683 s	MB Override	
Map-side sort buffer memory	136	MB Override	
Advanced			
Oustom mapre	ed-site.xml		
			Cancel Save

2.2.4.1. Updating Service Properties

- 1. Expand a configuration category.
- 2. Edit values for one or more properties having the Override option.

Edited values, also called stale configs, show an Undo option.

3. Choose Save.

2.2.4.2. Customizing Logging Properties

Ambari Web 1.5.0 displays default logging properties in -> Service Configs -> Custom log 4j Properties. Log 4j properties control logging activities for the selected service.



Restarting components in the service pushes the configuration properties displayed in Custom log 4j Properties to each host running components for that service. If you have customized logging properties that define how activities for each service are logged, you will see refresh indicators next to each service name after upgrading to Ambari 1.5.0 or higher. Make sure that logging properties displayed in Custom log 4j Properties include any customization. Optionally, you can create configuration groups that include custom logging properties. For more information about saving and overriding configuration settings, see Managing Configuration Groups.

2.2.4.3. Managing Configuration Groups

Ambari initially assigns all hosts in your cluster to one, default configuration group for each service you install. For example, after deploying a three-node cluster with default configuration settings, each host belongs to one configuration group that has default configuration settings for the HDFS service. In Configs, select **Manage Config Groups**, to create new groups, re-assign hosts, and override default settings for host components you assign to each group.



To create a Configuration Group:

- 1. Choose Add New Configuration Group.
- 2. Name and Describe the group, then choose Save.
- 3. Select a Config Group, then choose Add Hosts to Config Group.
- 4. Select Components and choose from available Hosts to add hosts to the new group.

Select Configuration Group Hosts enforces host membership in each group, based on installed components for the selected service.

Select Configuration Group Hosts

out o	2 hosts selected	Filter		Components •
	Host	IP Address	NameNode	
	c6402.ambari.apache.org	10.0.2.15	SN	lameNode
	c6403.ambari.apache.org	10.0.2.15	н	ES Client

- 5. Choose OK.
- 6. In Manage Configuration Groups, choose Save.

To edit settings for a configuration group:

- 1. In Configs, choose a Group.
- 2. Select a Config Group, then expand components to expose settings that allow Override.
- 3. Provide a non-default value, then choose Override or Save.

Configuration groups enforce configuration properties that allow override, based on installed components for the selected service and group.

DataNode directories	/hadoop/hdfs/data	Override
DataNode maximum Java heap size	1024 MB 1024 MB ORemove This is require	d
DataNode volumes failure toleration	0	Override
DataNode directories permission	750	Override

4. Override prompts you to choose one of the following options:

nors conliguration droup	
Select or create a HDFS Configuration Group where the configuration value will be overridden.	
Select an existing HDFS Configuration Group Custom log 4; hosts Overridden propriy will be changed for hosts belonging to the selected group. Create a new HDFS Configuration Group	
new config group name	
A new HDFS Configuration Group will be created with the given name. Initially there will be no hosts i group, with only the selected property overridden.	n the
Cancel	ок

- a. Select an existing configuration group (to which the property value override provided in step 3 will apply), or
- b. Create a new configuration group (which will include default properties, plus the property override provided in step 3).
- c. Then, choose OK.
- 5. In Configs, choose Save.

2.2.4.4. Restarting components

After editing and saving a service configuration, Restart indicates components that you must restart.

Summary	Configs	Quick Links -	Service Actions -
2 Restart	Required:	6 Components on 3 Hosts	Restart -

Select the Components or Hosts links to view details about components or hosts requiring a restart.

Then, choose an option appearing in Restart. For example, options to restart YARN components include:

Resta	art -
Restart All	
Restart DataNoo	des

2.2.4.5. Performing Service Actions

Manage a selected service on your cluster by performing service actions. Select the Service Actions drop-down menu, then choose an option. Available options depend on the service you have selected. For example, HDFS service action options include:



Optionally, choose **Turn On Maintenance Mode** to suppress alerts about this service before performing a service action. Maintenance Mode suppresses alerts and status indicator changes generated by the service, while allowing you to start, stop, restart, move, or perform maintenance tasks on the service. For more information about how Maintenance Mode affects bulk operations for host components, see Maintenance Mode.

2.2.4.6. Rolling Restarts

When you restart multiple services, components, or hosts, use rolling restarts to distribute the task; minimizing cluster downtime and service disruption. A rolling restart stops,

then starts multiple, running slave components such as DataNodes, TaskTrackers, NodeManagers, RegionServers, or Supervisors, using a batch sequence. You set rolling restart parameter values to control the number of, time between, tolerance for failures, and limits for restarts of many components across large clusters.

To run a rolling restart:

- 1. Select a Service, then link to a lists of specific components or hosts that Require Restart.
- 2. Select Restart, then choose a slave component option.
- 3. Review and set values for Rolling Restart Parameters.
- 4. Optionally, reset the flag to only restart components with changed configurations.
- 5. Choose Trigger Restart.

Use Background Operations to monitor progress of rolling restarts.

2.2.4.6.1. Setting Rolling Restart Parameters

Restart DataNodes

When you choose to restart slave components, use parameters to control how restarts of components roll. Parameter values based on ten percent of the total number of components in your cluster are set as default values. For example, default settings for a rolling restart of components in a 3-node cluster restarts 1 component at a time, waits 2 minutes between restarts, will proceed if only one failure occurs, and restarts all existing components that run this service.

If you trigger a rolling restart of components, Restart components with stale configs defaults to true. If you trigger a rolling restart of services, Restart services with stale configs defaults to false.

х

This will restart a specified number of DataNodes at a			
time.			
Note: This will trigger alerts. To suppress alerts, turn on Maintenance Mode for HDFS prior to triggering a rolling restart			
Restart 1 DataNodes at a time			
Wait 120 seconds between batches			
Tolerate up to 1 restart failures			
Only restart DataNodes with stale conf	igs		
Cancel Trigger Rolling Resta	rt		

Rolling restart parameter values must satisfy the following criteria:

Parameter	Required	Value	Description
Batch Size	Yes	Must be an integer > 0	Number of components to include in each restart batch.
Wait Time	Yes	Must be an integer > = 0	Time (in seconds) to wait between queuing each batch of components.
Tolerate up to x failures	Yes	Must be an integer > = 0	Total number of restart failures to tolerate, across all batches, before halting the restarts and not queuing batches.

Table 2.6. Validation Rules for Rolling Restart Parameters

2.2.4.6.2. Aborting a Rolling Restart

To abort future restart operations in the batch, choose Abort Rolling Restart.

Rolling Restart of NodeManagers - batch 1 of 1			
← Operations	Hosts	Show: All (1)	\$
Future operations of this	batch request can be aborted	Abort Rolling Resta	rt
🗸 c6403.ambari.apact	ne.org	100%	•
 Do not show this dia 	log again when starting a backgrour	d operation	ОК

2.2.4.7. Monitoring Background Operations

Optionally, use Background Operations to monitor progress and completion of bulk operations such as rolling restarts.

Background Operations opens by default when you run a job that executes bulk operations.

1. Select the right-arrow for each operation to show restart operation progress on each host.

Operations	Start Time	Duration	Show: All (10)		-
Contract of DataNodes	Today 16:45	11.12 secs		35%	Þ
 Rolling Restart of NodeManagers - batch 2 of 2 	Today 10:06	38.45 secs		100%	Þ
 Rolling Restart of NodeManagers - batch 1 of 2 	Today 10:05	25.87 secs		100%	Þ

2. After restarts complete, Select the right-arrow, or a host name, to view log files and any error messages generated on the selected host.

Restart DataNoc	les		Х
Operations	Hosts	Show: All (1)	\$
✓ c6403.ambari.apache.	org	100%	•
 Do not show this dialo 	g again when starting a bac	kground operation	ок

3. Select links at the upper-right to copy or open text files containing log and error information.

c6403.ambari.apache.org х 🗲 Tasks Restart DataNode Copy C Open stderr: /var/lib/ambari-agent/data/errors-261.txt None stdout: /var/lib/ambari-agent/data/output-261.txt 2014-02-27 21:57:56,138 - Execute['ulimit -c unlimited; export HADOOP_LI BEXEC_DIR=/usr/lib/hadoop/libexec && /usr/lib/hadoop/sbin/hadoop-daemon.s h --config /etc/hadoop/conf stop datanode'] {'not_if': None, 'user': 'hdf s'} 2014-02-27 21:58:01,181 - File['/var/run/hadoop/hdfs/hadoop-hdfs-datanode .pid'] {'action': ['delete'], 'ignore_failures': True} 2014-02-27 21:58:01,181 - Deleting File['/var/run/hadoop/hdfs/hadoop-hdfs -datanode.pid'] 2014-02-27 21:58:01,182 - Directory['/var/lib/hadoop-hdfs'] {'owner': 'hd fs', 'group': 'hadoop', 'mode': 0751, 'recursive': True} 2014-02-27 21:58:01,183 - Directory['/hadoop/hdfs/data'] {'owner': 'hdfs' , 'group': 'hadoop', 'mode': 0755, 'recursive': True} 2014-02-27 21:58:01,183 - Changing permission for /hadoop/hdfs/data from Do not show this dialog again when starting a background operation OK

Optionally, select the option to not show the bulk operations dialog.

2.2.4.8. Using Quick Links

Select **Quick Links** options to access additional sources of information about a selected service. For example, HDFS Quick Links options include the native NameNode GUI, NameNode logs, the NameNode JMX output, and thread stacks for the HDFS service. Quick Links are not available for every service.

Quick Links -

NameNode UI NameNode logs NameNode JMX Thread Stacks

2.2.4.9. Analyzing Service Metrics

Review visualizations in **Metrics** that chart common metrics for a selected service. Services > Summary displays metrics widgets for HDFS, HBase, Storm services. For more information about using metrics widgets, see Scanning System Metrics. To see more metrics information, select the link located at the upper right of the Metrics panel that opens he native Ganglia GUI.

2.3. Managing Hosts

Use Ambari Hosts to manage multiple HDP components such as DataNodes, NameNodes, TaskTrackers and RegionServers, running on hosts throughout your cluster. For example, you can restart all DataNode components, optionally controlling that task with rolling restarts. Ambari Hosts supports filtering your selection of host components, based on operating status, host health, and defined host groupings.

2.3.1. Working with Hosts

Use Hosts to view hosts in your cluster on which Hadoop services run. Use options on **Actions** to perform actions on one or more hosts in your cluster.

View individual hosts	s, listed by fully-qualified	domain name,	on the Hosts	landing page.
-----------------------	------------------------------	--------------	--------------	---------------

Ambari mycluster 🛛 ops	_	Dashbo	ard Service	Hosts	Jobs Adn	nin 🔒 admin 👻
Actions - Filter: All (3) -						
Name 🌣	IP Address ◊ Any	Cores (CPU) 🌣	RAM 0	Disk Usage ∜	Load Avg Any	Components Filter
🗆 오 c6401.ambari.apache.org	10.0.2.15	1 (1)	1.83GB	L	0.00	▶ 5 Components
🗆 🛇 c6402.ambari.apache.org	10.0.2.15	1 (1)	1.83GB	l	0.10	24 Components
🗆 🛇 c6403.ambari.apache.org	10.0.2.15	1 (1)	1.83GB	l	0.16	17 Components
3 of 3 hosts showing - clear filters				S	now: 10 🛊	1 - 3 of 3 🛛 🗲 🗲

2.3.2. Determining Host Status

A colored dot beside each host name indicates operating status of each host, as follows:

- Red At least one master component on that host is down. Hover to see a tooltip that lists affected components.
- Orange At least one slave component on that host is down. Hover to see a tooltip that lists affected components.
- Yellow Ambari Server has not received a heartbeat from that host for more than 3 minutes.
- Green Normal running state.

A red condition flag overrides an orange condition flag, which overrides a yellow condition flag. In other words, a host having a master component down may also have other issues. The following example shows three hosts, one having a master component down, one

having a slave component down, and one healthy. Warning indicators appear next to hosts having a component down.

Name ≑	
Any	
c6401.ambari.apache.org	0
c6402.ambari.apache.org	6
c6403.ambari.apache.org	1

2.3.3. Filtering the Hosts List

Use Filters, outlined red in the Hosts [27] image, to limit listed hosts to only those having a specific operating status. The number of hosts in your cluster having a listed operating status appears after each status name, in parenthesis. For example, the following cluster has one host having healthy status and three hosts having Maintenance Mode turned on.

All (3)
Healthy (1)
A Master Down (2)
😑 Slave Down (0)
📀 Lost Heartbeat (0)
Alerts (2)
CRestart (2)
🖨 Maintenance Mode (0)

For example, to limit the list of hosts appearing on Hosts home to only those with Healthy status, select Filters, then choose the Healthy option. In this case, one host name appears on Hosts home. Alternatively, to limit the list of hosts appearing on Hosts home to only those having Maintenance Mode on, select Filters, then choose the Maintenance Mode option. In this case, three host names appear on Hosts home.

Use the general filter tool, outlined blue in the Hosts image, to apply specific search and sort criteria that limits the list of hosts appearing on Hosts home.

2.3.4. Performing Host-Level Actions

Use Actions, outlined green in the Hosts image, to act on one, or multiple hosts in your cluster. Actions performed on multiple hosts are also known as bulk operations.

Actions comprises three menus that list the following options types:

- Hosts lists selected, filtered or all hosts options, based on your selections made using Hosts home and Filters.
- Objects lists component objects that match your host selection criteria.
- Operations lists all operations available for the component objects you selected.

For example, to restart DataNodes on one host:

- 1. In Hosts, select a host running at least one DataNode.
- 2. In Actions, choose Selected Hosts -> DataNodes -> Restart, as shown in the following image.

Actions - Filter: A	ll (3) ▼		
+ Add New Hosts			IP Address 🏺
Selected Hosts (1)	Hosts	•	Any
Filtered Hosts (3) >	DataNodes	•	Start
All Hosts (3)	NodeManagers	•	Stop
	RegionServers	•	Restart
🗹 😑 c6403.ambari.apa(Supervisors	•	Decommission
(-	Recommission
3 of 3 hosts showing - clea	ar filters		I nost se

- 3. Choose OK to confirm starting the selected operation.
- 4. Optionally, use Background Operations to monitor progress of the restart operation.

2.3.5. Viewing Components on a Host

To manage components running on a specific host, choose a FQDN on Hosts Home. For example, choose c6403.ambari.apache.org in the default example shown. Summary-Components lists all components installed on that host.

🝌 Ambari mycluster 🛛 ops		Dashboard Serv	rices Hosts	Jobs Admin	💄 admin 👻
○ c6403.ambari.apache.org No alerts ← Back					
Summary Configs					Host Actions -
Components	+ Add	Host Metrics			Qo
ZooKeeper Server / ZooKeeper	Started -	100%			
OataNode / HDFS	Started -	<u>з</u> <mark>Ъ</mark>		372.5 GB	
📀 Ganglia Monitor / Ganglia	Started -	5 <mark>0</mark> %		186.2 GB	
SegionServer / HBase	Started -	Jul	man		
NodeManager / YARN	Started -	CPUI	Jsage	Disk	Usage
Supervisor / Storm	Started -	4		1.9 CB	
Clients / HBase Client , HCat , HDFS Client , Hive	Installed -			1.0 GB	
Client, MapReduce2 Client, Oozie Client,					,
Pig , Sqoop , Tez Client , YARN Client		Lo	ad	Memor	y Usage
, ZooKeeper Client		2 0 MB		400	
Summary		3.6 MB			
Hostna c6403.ambari.apache.org		1.9 МВ		200	
OS: redhat6 (x86_64) Cores (1 (1)				Proc	26226
Disk: 30.44GB/525.79GB (5.79% used Memory: 1.83GB	d)	INGLWOIP	(Usaye	FIUC	00000
Load Avg: 0.16 Heartbeat: less than a minute ago					

Choose options in **Host Actions**, to start, stop, restart, delete, or turn on maintenance mode for all components installed on the selected host.

Alternatively, choose action options from the drop-down menu next to an individual component on a host. The drop-down menu shows current operation status for each component, For example, you can restart, stop, decommission, or turn on Maintenance Mode for the DataNode component (started) for HDFS, by selecting one of the following options:



2.3.6. Decommissioning Masters and Slaves

Decommissioning is a process that supports removing a component from the cluster. You must decommission a master or slave running on a host before removing the component or host from service. Decommissioning helps prevent potential loss of data or service disruption. Decommissioning is available for the following component types:

- DataNodes
- NodeManagers
- TaskTrackers
- RegionServers

Decommissioning executes the following tasks:

- For DataNodes, safely replicates the HDFS data to other DataNodes in the cluster.
- For NodeManagers and TaskTrackers, stops accepting new job requests from the masters and stops the component.
- For RegionServers, turns on drain mode and stops the component.

2.3.6.1. How to Decommission a Component

To decommission a component using Ambari Web, browse **Hosts** to find the host FQDN on which the component resides.

Using Actions, select Hosts Component Type, then choose Decommission.



The UI shows "Decommissioning" status while steps process, then "Decommissioned" when complete.

•	DataNode / HDFS	Decommissioned
0	Ganglia Monitor / Ganglia	Started -
•	HBase RegionServer / HBase	Decommissioned

2.3.6.2. How to Delete a Component

To delete a component using Ambari Web, on **Hosts** choose the host FQDN on which the component resides.

- 1. In **Components**, find a decommissioned component.
- 2. Stop the component, if necessary.



Note

A decommissioned slave component may restart in the decommissioned state.

- 3. For a decommissioned component, choose **Delete** from the component drop-down menu.
- 4. Restart the Ganglia and Nagios services.



Note

Restarting services enables Ambari to recognize and monitor the correct number of components.

Deleting a slave component, such as a DATANODE does not automatically inform a master component, such as a NAMENODE to remove the slave component from its exclusion list. Adding a deleted slave component back into the cluster presents the following issue; the added slave remains decommissioned from the master's perspective. Restart the master component, as a work-around.

2.3.7. Deleting a Host from a Cluster

Deleting a host removes the host from the cluster. Before deleting a host, you must complete the following prerequisites:

- Stop all components running on the host.
- Decommission any DataNodes running on the host.
- Move from the host any master components, such as NameNode or ResourceManager, running on the host.
- Turn Off Maintenance Mode, if necessary, for the host.

2.3.7.1. How to Delete a Host from a Cluster

- 1. In Hosts, click on a host name.
- 2. On the Host-Details page, select Host Actions drop-down menu.
- 3. Choose Delete.

If you have not completed prerequisite steps, a warning message similar to the following one appears:



2.3.8. Setting Maintenance Mode

Maintenance Mode supports suppressing alerts and skipping bulk operations for specific services, components and hosts in an Ambari-managed cluster. You typically turn on Maintenance Mode when performing hardware or software maintenance, changing configuration settings, troubleshooting, decommissioning, or removing cluster nodes. You may place a service, component, or host object in Maintenance Mode before you perform necessary maintenance or troubleshooting tasks.

Maintenance Mode affects a service, component, or host object in the following two ways:

- maintenance mode suppresses alerts, warnings and status change indicators generated for the object
- maintenance mode exempts an object from host-level or service-level bulk operations

Explicitly turning on Maintenance Mode for a service implicitly turns on Maintenance Mode for components and hosts that run the service. While Maintenance Mode On prevents bulk operations being performed on the service, component, or host, you may explicitly start and stop a service, component, or host having Maintenance Mode On.

2.3.8.1. Setting Maintenance Mode for Services, Components, and Hosts

For example, examine using Maintenance Mode in a 3-node, Ambari-managed cluster installed using default options. This cluster has one data node, on host c6403. This example describes how to explicitly turn on Maintenance Mode for the HDFS service, alternative procedures for explicitly turning on Maintenance Mode for a host, and the implicit effects of turning on Maintenance Mode for a service, a component and a host.

2.3.8.1.1. How to Turn On Maintenance Mode for a Service

- 1. Using Services, select HDFS.
- 2. Select Service Actions, then choose Turn On Maintenance Mode.
- 3. Choose OK to confirm.

Notice, on Services Summary that Maintenance Mode turns on for the NameNode and SNameNode components.

2.3.8.1.2. How to Turn On Maintenance Mode for a Host

- 1. Using Hosts, select c6401.ambari.apache.org.
- 2. Select Host Actions, then choose Turn On Maintenance Mode.
- 3. Choose OK to confirm.

Notice on Components, that Maintenance Mode turns on for all components.

2.3.8.1.3. How to Turn On Maintenance Mode for a Host (alternative using filtering for hosts)

- 1. Using Hosts, select c6403.ambari.apache.org.
- 2. In Actions -> Selected Hosts -> Hosts choose Turn On Maintenance Mode.
- 3. Choose OK to confirm.

Actions - Filter: All (3) -

Notice that Maintenance Mode turns on for host c6403.ambari.apache.org.

Your list of Hosts now shows Maintenance Mode On for hosts c6401 and c6403.

Name ÷	IP Address ÷	Cores (CPU)	RAM :	Disk Usage 🌣	Load Avg	Components
E Any	6 components in Maintenance Mode	Any	Any		Any	Filter T
C6401.ambari.apache.org	10.0.2.15	1 (1)	1.83GB	1	0.14	6 Components
c6402.ambari.apache.org	10.0.2.15	1 (1)	1.83GB	1	0.11	27 Components
🛙 💼 c6403.ambari.apache.org	10.0.2.15	1 (1)	1.83GB		0.02	17 Components
3 of 3 hosts showing - clear	filters 1 host s	elected - clear se	lection	S	how: 10 🛊	1 - 3 of 3 🛛 🗲 🗲

- Hover your cursor over each Maintenance Mode icon appearing in the Hosts list.
 - Notice that hosts c6401 and c6403 have Maintenance Mode On.
 - Notice that on host c6401; Ganglia Monitor, HbaseMaster, HDFS client, NameNode, and Zookeeper Server have Maintenance Mode turned On.
 - Notice on host c6402, that HDFS client and Secondary NameNode have Maintenance Mode On.
 - Notice on host c6403, that 15 components have Maintenance Mode On.
- The following behavior also results:
 - Alerts are suppressed for the DataNode.
 - DataNode is skipped from HDFS Start/Stop/Restart All, Rolling Restart.
 - DataNode is skipped from all Bulk Operations except Turn Maintenance Mode ON/ OFF.
 - DataNode is skipped from Start All and / Stop All components.

• DataNode is skipped from a host-level restart/restart all/stop all/start.

2.3.8.1.4. Maintenance Mode Use Cases

Four common Maintenance Mode Use Cases follow:

1. You want to perform hardware, firmware, or OS maintenance on a host.

You want to:

- Prevent alerts generated by all components on this host.
- Be able to stop, start, and restart each component on the host.
- Prevent host-level or service-level bulk operations from starting, stopping, or restarting components on this host.

To achieve these goals, turn On Maintenance Mode explicitly for the host. Putting a host in Maintenance Mode implicitly puts all components on that host in Maintenance Mode.

2. You want to test a service configuration change. You will stop, start, and restart the service using a rolling restart to test whether restarting picks up the change.

You want:

- No alerts generated by any components in this service.
- To prevent host-level or service-level bulk operations from starting, stopping, or restarting components in this service.

To achieve these goals, turn on Maintenance Mode explicitly for the service. Putting a service in Maintenance Mode implicitly turns on Maintenance Mode for all components in the service.

3. You turn off a service completely.

You want:

- The service to generate no warnings.
- To ensure that no components start, stop, or restart due to host-level actions or bulk operations.

To achieve these goals, turn On Maintenance Mode explicitly for the service. Putting a service in Maintenance Mode implicitly turns on Maintenance Mode for all components in the service.

4. A host component is generating alerts.

You want to:

- Check the component.
- Assess warnings and alerts generated for the component.

• Prevent alerts generated by the component while you check its condition.

To achieve these goals, turn on Maintenance Mode explicitly for the host component. Putting a host component in Maintenance Mode prevents host-level and service-level bulk operations from starting or restarting the component. You can restart the component explicitly while Maintenance Mode is on.

2.3.9. Adding Hosts to a Cluster

To add new hosts to your cluster, browse to the Hosts page and select +Add New Hosts, from the Actions menu. The Add Host Wizard provides a sequence of prompts similar to those in the Ambari Install Wizard. Follow the prompts, providing information similar to that provided to define the first set of hosts in your cluster.

Add Host Wizard

Install Options
Enter the list of hosts to be included in the cluster and provide your SSH key.
Target Hosts
Enter a list of hosts using the Fully Qualified Domain Name (FQDN), one per line. Or use Pattern Expressions
c6405.ambari.apache.org
Host Registration Information Provide your SSH Private Key to automatically register hosts No file chosen Ctress file —————————————————————————————

To review the Ambari Install Wizard procedure, see Installing, Configuring, and Deploying the Cluster in the Ambari Installation Guide.

2.4. Administering Ambari

Use Admin options to manage the following administrative tasks:

- Managing Ambari Web users
- Enabling High Availability of HDP Components
- Enabling Security Configurations
- Checking Stack and Component Versions

- Checking Service User and Group Accounts
- Accessing Jobs Monitoring Information

in an Ambari-administered, HDP 2.x cluster.

2.4.1. Managing Ambari Web Users

By default, Ambari is configured to use a local user store for authentication. This section describes managing users in the local user store. Optionally, you can configure Ambari to use LDAP or Active Directory for authentication. For more information, see Setting Up LDAP or Active Directory Authentication.

Select Users in the left nav bar to add Ambari Web users, make them administrators, delete them, or change their passwords. There are two user roles: **User** and **Admin**. **Users** can view metrics, view service status and configuration, and browse job information. **Admins** can do all User tasks and in addition can start or stop services, modify configurations, and run smoke tests.

Users	Username	Admin	Туре	Action	+Add Loca
High Availability	admin	Ś	Local	edit delete	
Security					
Cluster					
Misc					

To make a change in a current user's password, click **edit**, in red above. To add an additional Ambari Web user, click **+Add Local User**. In both cases, a variant of the user name pop up appears.

Username	
Password	
Retype Password	
Admin	
	Cancel Create

For a new Ambari Web user, enter the desired **Username** and **Password**. Check **Admin** to make this user an administrator. Click **Create** to make the user.

For an Ambari Web existing user, enter the old and new **Passwords**. Make your changes and click **Save**.

To delete an existing Ambari Web user, click **delete** and fill in the **Username**.

2.4.2. Enabling High Availability of HDP Components

To enable high availability of HDP components, you must first set up NameNode High Availability on your cluster. For instructions to set up NameNode High Availability, see Setting Up NameNode High Availability.

2.4.3. Enabling Kerberos Security

To turn on Kerberos-based security you must:

- 1. Have already set up Kerberos for your cluster. For more information on setting up Kerberos, see Setting Up Kerberos for Use with Ambari
- 2. Click **Enable Security** and follow the Enable Security Wizard.

Users	Kerberos security is disabled	Enable Security
High Availability		
Security		
Cluster		
Misc		

- a. Get Started: This step just reminds you that you need to set up Kerberos before you start.
- b. **Configure Services**: This step asks you for your Kerberos information: principals and paths to keytabs, path to your Kerberos tools, realm names and so on. For more information about a specific field, hover over it, and a pop-up window with a definition appears.
- c. **Create Principals and Keytabs**: Use this step to check that all your information is correct. Click **Back** to make any changes. Click **Apply** when you are satisfied with the assignments.



Note

If you have a large cluster, you may want to go to the **Create Principals** and **Keytabs** step first. Step through the wizard accepting the defaults to get to the appropriate page. On the page, use the **Download CSV** button to get a list of all the necessary principals and keytabs in CSV form, which can be used to set up a script. The list includes hostname, principal description, principal name, keytab user, keytab group, keytab permissions, absolute keytab path, and keytab file name.

SECURITY WIZARD	Create	Create Principals and Keytabs		
Get Started Configure Services Create Principals and Keytabs Save and Apply Configuration	You need to c You can down the principals changes, click	reate the following princip load the list as a CSV file and keytabs have been o Back.	bals and keytabs on the hosts shown. and use it to create a script to generate th reated, click on Proceed to continue. If you	e principals and keytabs. Once need to make configuration
	Host	Component	Principal	Keytab
	FQDN	Ambari Smoke T est User	ambari-qa@EXAMPLE.COM	/etc/security/keytabs/smokeuser. headless.keytab
	FQDN	HDFS User	hds@EXAMPLE.COM	/etc/security/keytabs/hdfs.headle ss.keytab
	FQDN	HBase User	hbase@EXAMPLE.COM	/etc/security/keytabs/hbase.head less.keytab
	FQDN	SPNEGO User	HTTP/p-10-191-37-233.ec2.internal@E XAMPLE.COM	/etc/security/keytabs/spnego.ser vice.keytab
	FQDN	DataNode	drvlp-10-191-37-233.ec2.internal@EXA MPLE.COM	/etc/security/keytabs/dn.service.k eytab
	FQDN	HBase Master	hbase/ip-10-191-37-233.ec2.internal@E XAMPLE.COM	/etc/security/keytabs/hbase.servi ce.keytab
	FQDN	HiveServer2	hive/ip-10-191-37-233.ec2.internal@EX AMPLE.COM	/etc/security/keytabs/hive.service .keytab
	FQDN		jt/p-10-191-37-233.ec2.internal@EXAM PLE.COM	/etc/security/keytabs/jt.service.ke ytab

d. Save and Apply Configuration: This step displays a bar showing the progress of integrating the Kerberos information into your Ambari Server.

2.4.4. Checking Stack and Component Versions

To check which version of the Stack you are using and to see the component versions that are included in that Stack, click **Cluster**.

Users	Cluster Stack Version: HDP-2.1		
High	Service	Version	Description
Availability Security	HDFS	2.4.0.2.1	Apache Hadoop Distributed File System
Cluster	YARN + MapReduce2	2.4.0.2.1	Apache Hadoop NextGen MapReduce (YARN)
Access	Tez	0.4.0.2.1	Tez is the next generation Hadoop Query Processing framework written on top of YARN.
	Naglos	3.5.0	Naglos Monitoring and Alerting system
	Ganglia	3.5.0	Ganglia Metrics Collection system (RRDTool will be installed too)
	Hive	0.13.0.2.1	Data warehouse system for ad-hoc queries & analysis of large datasets and table & storage management service
	HBase	0.98.0.2.1	Non-relational distributed database and centralized service for configuration management & synchronization
	Pig	0.12.1.2.1	Scripting platform for analyzing large datasets
	Sqoop	1.4.4.2.1	Tool for transferring bulk data between Apache Hadoop and structured data stores such as relational databases
	Oozie	4.0.0.2.1	System for workflow coordination and execution of Apache Hadoop jobs. This also includes the installation of the optional Oozle Web Console which relies on and will install the ExtJS Library.
	ZooKeeper	3.4.5.2.1	Centralized service which provides highly reliable distributed coordination.
	Falcon	0.5.0.2.1	Data management and processing platform
	Storm	0.9.1.2.1	Apache Hadoop Stream processing framework

2.4.5. Checking Service User Accounts and Groups

To check the service user accounts and groups that have been assigned to various Hadoop services, click the Misc tab.

Users	Service Users and Groups		
High	Name	Value	
Availability Security Cluster	Proxy group for Hive, WebHCat and Oozie	users	
	HDFS User	hdfs	
Misc	MapReduce User	mapred	
Access	YARN User	yam	
	HBase User	hbase	
	Hive User	hive	
	HCat User	hcat	
	WebHCat User	hcat	
	Oozie User	oozie	
	Falcon User	falcon	
	Storm User	storm	
	ZooKeeper User	zookeeper	
	Ganglia User	nobody	
	Nagios User	naglos	
	Nagios Group	naglos	
	Smoke Test User	ambari-qa	
	Tez User	tez	
	Hadoop Group	hadoop	

2.4.6. Accessing Jobs Monitoring Information

Ambari enables the Jobs tab to display for non-administrator users by default. In HDP 2.1 and higher, Jobs displays status information about Hive query jobs throughout the cluster. This information provides useful metrics for administering Hive, but is not useful to most non-administrator users. In a production environment, you may disable access to Jobs for non-administrator users. You may also choose to prevent Hive and Tez from writing event metrics to the Application Timeline Server, by disabling the yarn.timeline-service.

To manage access that your non-administrator users have to Jobs information, choose Access.



2.4.6.1. Disabling the Jobs View

To prevent non-administrator users from viewing information about Hive queries, disable the Jobs view.

- 1. Select Admin > Access .
- 2. Clear the Enable Jobs tab for non-Admin users checkbox.
- 3. Choose Save.

2.4.6.2. Disabling the YARN Timeline Service

To prevent Hive and Tez from writing event metrics to the Application Timeline Server, disable the Yarn Timeline Service.

- 1. Select Services > YARN > Configs .
- 2. Expand Application Timeline Server.
- 3. Clear the yarn.timeline-service.enabled checkbox.
- 4. Restart the YARN service.

3. Using Nagios With Hadoop

Nagios is an open source network monitoring system designed to monitor all aspects of your Hadoop cluster (such as hosts, services, and so forth) over the network. It can monitor many facets of your installation, ranging from operating system attributes like CPU and memory usage to the status of applications, files, and more. Nagios provides a flexible, customizable framework for collecting data on the state of your Hadoop cluster.

Nagios is primarily used for the following kinds of tasks:

- Getting instant information about your organization's Hadoop infrastructure
- Detecting and repairing problems, and mitigating future issues, before they affect endusers and customers
- Leveraging Nagios' event monitoring capabilities to receive alerts for potential problem areas
- Analyzing specific trends; for example: what is the CPU usage for a particular Hadoop service weekdays between 2 p.m. and 5 p.m

For more information, see the Nagios website at http://www.nagios.org.



Note

Nagios is an optional component of Ambari. During cluster install you can choose to install and configure Nagios. When selected, out-of-the-box Ambari provides a set of Nagios plug-ins specially designed for monitoring important aspects of your Hadoop cluster, based on your Stack selection.

3.1. Basic Nagios Architecture

Using the open source monitoring system Nagios, Ambari gathers information on the status of both of the hosts and the services that run on them.

- Host and System Information: Ambari monitors basic host and system information such as CPU utilization, disk I/O bandwidth and operations per second, average memory and swap space utilization, and average network latency.
- Service Information: Ambari monitors the health and performance status of each service by presenting information generated by that service. Because services that run in master/ slave configurations (HDFS, MapReduce, and HBase) are fault tolerant in regard to service slaves, master information is presented individually, whereas slave information is presented largely in aggregate.
- Alert Information: Using Nagios with Hadoop-specific plug-ins and configurations, Ambari Web can issue alerts based on service states defined on three basic levels:
 - OK
 - Warning

• Critical

The thresholds for these alerts can be tuned using configuration files, and new alerts can be added. For more details on Nagios architecture, see the Nagios Overview at the nagios.org web site.

3.2. Installing Nagios

The Ambari Installation Wizard gives you the option of installing and configuring Nagios, including the out-of-the-box plug-ins for Hadoop-specific alerts. The Nagios server, Nagios plug-ins, and the web-based user interface are installed on the Nagios server host, as specified during the installation procedure.

Some of the Nagios plug-ins also require the Simple Network Management Protocol (SNMP) daemon to work, so the daemon is automatically installed on all cluster nodes if Nagios is installed. For example, the SNMP daemon is used to collect information about system resources (like memory, storage, swap space, and CPU utilization).



Note

By default the Nagios server does not use any authentication or encryption scheme while communicating with SNMP daemons. However you can enable secure communication with SNMP daemons by setting the appropriate SNMP configuration.

3.3. Configuration File Locations

All Hadoop-specific configurations are added to Nagios through files prefixed with "hadoop-" located in the /etc/nagios/objects directory of the Nagios Server host. The default general Nagios configuration file, nagios.cfg (in /etc/nagios), is set up to pick up the new Hadoop specific configurations from this directory.

Hadoop-specific plug-ins are stored in the Nagios plug-ins directory,/usr/lib64/ nagios/plug-ins/.

By default, the Nagios server runs as a user named "nagios" which is in a group also named "nagios". The user and group can be customized during the Ambari Cluster Install (Cluster Install Wizard > Customize Services > Misc). Once Nagios is installed, use Ambari Web to start and stop the Nagios server.

3.4. Configuring Nagios Alerts For Hadoop Services

For each alert, the out of the box Hadoop Nagios configuration file defines default values for the following Nagios directives:

Warning threshold	The value that produces a warning alert.
Critical threshold	The value that produces a critical alert.

Check interval	The number of minutes between regularly scheduled checks on the host as long as the check does not change the state.
Retry interval	The number of minutes between "retries" When a service changes state, Nagios can confirm that state change by retrying the check multiple times. This retry interval can be different than the original check interval.
Maximum number of check attempts	The max number of retry attempts. Usually when the state of a service changes, this change is considered "soft" until multiple retries confirm it. Once the state change is confirmed, it is considered "hard". Ambari Web displays hard states for all the Nagios Hadoop specific checks.

3.5. Nagios Alerts For Hadoop Services

The following section provides more information on the various Hadoop alerts provided by Ambari. All these alerts are displayed in Ambari Web and in the native Nagios web interface.

There are two types of alerts configured out-of-the-box with Ambari:

• Host-level Alerts

These alerts are related to a specific host and specific component running on that host. These alerts check a component and system-level metrics to determine health of the host.

• Service-level Alerts

These alerts are related to a Hadoop Service and do not pertain to a specific host. These alerts check one or more components of a service as well as system-level metrics to determine overall health of a Hadoop Service.

3.5.1. HDFS Service Alerts

These alerts are used to monitor the HDFS service.

3.5.1.1. Blocks health

This service-level alert is triggered if the number of corrupt or missing blocks exceeds the configured critical threshold. This alert uses the check_hdfs_blocks plug-in.

3.5.1.1.1. Potential causes

- Some DataNodes are down and the replicas that are missing blocks are only on those DataNodes
- The corrupt/missing blocks are from files with a replication factor of 1. New replicas cannot be created because the only replica of the block is missing

3.5.1.1.2. Possible remedies

- For critical data, use a replication factor of 3
- Bring up the failed DataNodes with missing or corrupt blocks.
- Identify the files associated with the missing or corrupt blocks by running the Hadoop $\tt fsck$ command
- Delete the corrupt files and recover them from backup, if it exists

3.5.1.2. NameNode process

This host-level alert is triggered if the NameNode process cannot be confirmed to be up and listening on the network for the configured critical threshold, given in seconds. It uses the Nagios check_tcp

3.5.1.2.1. Potential causes

- The NameNode process is down on the HDFS master host
- The NameNode process is up and running but not listening on the correct network port (default 8201)
- The Nagios server cannot connect to the HDFS master through the network.

3.5.1.2.2. Possible remedies

- Check for any errors in the logs (/var/log/hadoop/hdfs/)and restart the NameNode host/process using the HMC Manage Services tab.
- Run the netstat-tuplpn command to check if the NameNode process is bound to the correct network port
- Use ping to check the network connection between the Nagios server and the NameNode

3.5.1.3. DataNode space

This host-level alert is triggered if storage capacity if full on the DataNode (90% critical). It uses the check_datanode_storage.php plug-in which checks the DataNode JMX Servlet for the **Capacity** and **Remaining** properties.

3.5.1.3.1. Potential causes

- Cluster storage is full
- If cluster storage is not full, DataNode is full

3.5.1.3.2. Possible remedies

• If cluster still has storage, use Balancer to distribute the data to relatively less used datanodes

• If the cluster is full, delete unnecessary data or add additional storage by adding either more DataNodes or more or larger disks to the DataNodes. After adding more storage run Balancer

3.5.1.4. DataNode process

This host-level alert is triggered if the individual DataNode processes cannot be established to be up and listening on the network for the configured critical threshold, given in seconds. It uses the Nagios check_tcp plugin.

3.5.1.4.1. Potential causes

- DataNode process is down or not responding
- DataNode are not down but is not listening to the correct network port/address
- Nagios server cannot connect to the DataNodes

3.5.1.4.2. Possible remedies

- Check for dead DataNodes in Ambari Web.
- Check for any errors in the DataNode logs (/var/log/hadoop/hdfs) and restart the DataNode, if necessary
- Run the netstat-tuplpn command to check if the DataNode process is bound to the correct network port
- Use ping to check the network connection between the Nagios server and the DataNode

3.5.1.5. NameNode host CPU utilization

This host-level alert is triggered if the percent of CPU utilization on the master host exceeds the configured critical threshold. It uses the Nagios check_snmp_load plug-in.

3.5.1.5.1. Potential causes

- Unusually high CPU utilization: Can be caused by a very unusual job/query workload, but this is generally the sign of an issue in the daemon.
- A down SNMP daemon on the master node, producing an unknown status

3.5.1.5.2. Possible remedies

- Use the top command to determine which processes are consuming excess CPU.
- Reset the offending process
- Check the status of the SNMP daemon

3.5.1.6. NameNode edit logs directory status

This host-level alert is triggered if the NameNode cannot write to one of its configured edit log directories.

3.5.1.6.1. Potential causes

- At least one of the multiple edit log directories is mounted over NFS and has become unreachable
- The permissions on at least one of the multiple edit log directories has become read-only

3.5.1.6.2. Possible remedies

- Check permissions on all edit log directories
- Use the dfs.name.dir parameter in the hdfs-site.xml file on the NameNode to identify the locations of all the edit log directories for the NameNode. Check whether the NameNode can reach all those locations.

3.5.1.7. NameNode Web UI

This host-level alert is triggered if the NameNode Web UI is unreachable.

3.5.1.7.1. Potential causes

- The NameNode Web UI is unreachable from the Nagios Server.
- The NameNode process is not running

3.5.1.7.2. Possible remedies

- Check whether the NameNode process is running
- Check whether the Nagios Server can ping the NameNode server.
- Using a browser, check whether the Nagios Server can reach the NameNode Web UI.

3.5.1.8. Percent DataNodes with space available

This service-level alert is triggered if the storage if full on a certain percentage of DataNodes (10% warn, 30% critical). It uses the check_aggregate.php plug-in which aggregates the result from the check_datanode_storage.php plug-in.

3.5.1.8.1. Potential causes

- Cluster storage is full
- If cluster storage is not full, DataNode is full

3.5.1.8.2. Possible remedies

- If cluster still has storage, use Balancer to distribute the data to relatively less used DataNodes
- If the cluster is full, delete unnecessary data or add additional storage by adding either more DataNodes or more or larger disks to the DataNodes. After adding more storage run Balancer

3.5.1.9. Percent DataNodes live

This alert is triggered if the number of down DataNodes in the cluster is greater than the configured critical threshold. It uses the check_aggregate plug-in to aggregate the results of Data node process checks.

3.5.1.9.1. Potential causes

- DataNodes are down
- DataNodes are not down but are not listening to the correct network port/address
- Nagios server cannot connect to one or more DataNodes

3.5.1.9.2. Possible remedies

- Check for dead DataNodes in Ambari Web.
- Check for any errors in the DataNode logs (/var/log/hadoop/hdfs) and restart the DataNode hosts/processes
- Run the netstat-tuplpn command to check if the DataNode process is bound to the correct network port.
- Use ping to check the network connection between the Nagios server and the DataNodes.

3.5.1.10. NameNode RPC latency

This host-level alert is triggered if the NameNode operations RPC latency exceeds the configured critical threshold. Typically an increase in the RPC processing time increases the RPC queue length, causing the average queue wait time to increase for NameNode operations. It uses the Nagios check_rpcq_latency plug-in.

3.5.1.10.1. Potential causes

• A job or an application is performing too many NameNode operations.

3.5.1.10.2. Possible remedies

• Review the job or the application for potential bugs causing it to perform too many NameNode operations.

3.5.1.11. HDFS capacity utilization

This service-level alert is triggered if the HDFS capacity utilization exceeds the configured critical threshold (80% warn, 90% critical). It uses the check_hdfs_capacity.php plugin which checks the NameNode JMX Servlet for the CapacityUsed and CapacityRemaining properties.

3.5.1.11.1. Potential causes

• Cluster storage is full

3.5.1.11.2. Possible remedies

- Delete unnecessary data.
- Archive unused data.
- Add more DataNodes.
- Add more or larger disks to the DataNodes.
- After adding more storage, run Balancer.

3.5.2. NameNode HA Alerts (Hadoop 2 only)

These alerts are available only when you are using Hadoop 2.x and you have enabled NameNode HA.

3.5.2.1. JournalNode process

This host-level alert is triggered if the individual JournalNode process cannot be established to be up and listening on the network for the configured critical threshold, given in seconds. It uses the Nagios $check_tcp$ plug-in.

3.5.2.1.1. Potential causes

- The JournalNode process is down or not responding.
- The JournalNode is not down but is not listening to the correct network port/address.
- The Nagios server cannot connect to the JournalNode.

3.5.2.1.2. Possible remedies

- Check if the JournalNode process is dead.
- Use ping to check the network connection between the Nagios server and the JournalNode host.

3.5.2.2. NameNode HA Healthy process

This service-level alert is triggered if either the Active NameNode or Standby NameNode are not running.

3.5.2.2.1. Potential causes

- The Active, Standby or both NameNode processes are down.
- The Nagios Server cannot connect to one or both NameNode hosts.

3.5.2.2.2. Possible remedies

• On each host running NameNode, check for any errors in the logs (/var/log/hadoop/ hdfs/) and restart the NameNode host/process using Ambari Web.

- On each host running NameNode, run the netstat-tuplpn command to check if the NameNode process is bound to the correct network port.
- Use ping to check the network connection between the Nagios server and the hosts running NameNode.

3.5.3. YARN Alerts (Hadoop 2 only)

These alerts are used to monitor YARN.

3.5.3.1. ResourceManager process

This host-level alert is triggered if the individual ResourceManager process cannot be established to be up and listening on the network for the configured critical threshold, given in seconds. It uses the Nagios check_tcp plug-in.

3.5.3.1.1. Potential causes

- The ResourceManager process is down or not responding.
- The ResourceManager is not down but is not listening to the correct network port/ address.
- Nagios Server cannot connect to the ResourceManager

3.5.3.1.2. Possible remedies

- Check for a dead ResourceManager.
- Check for any errors in the ResourceManager logs (/var/log/hadoop/yarn) and restart the ResourceManager, if necessary.
- Use ping to check the network connection between the Nagios Server and the ResourceManager host.

3.5.3.2. Percent NodeManagers live

This alert is triggered if the number of down NodeManagers in the cluster is greater than the configured critical threshold. It uses the check_aggregate plug-in to aggregate the results of DataNode process alert checks.

3.5.3.2.1. Potential causes

- NodeManagers are down.
- NodeManagers are not down but are not listening to the correct network port/address .
- Nagios server cannot connect to one or more NodeManagers.

3.5.3.2.2. Possible remedies

• Check for dead NodeManagers.

- Check for any errors in the NodeManager logs (/var/log/hadoop/yarn) and restart the NodeManagers hosts/processes, as necessary.
- Run the netstat-tuplpn command to check if the NodeManager process is bound to the correct network port.
- Use ping to check the network connection between the Nagios Server and the NodeManagers host.

3.5.3.3. ResourceManager Web UI

This host-level alert is triggered if the ResourceManager Web UI is unreachable.

3.5.3.3.1. Potential causes

- The ResourceManager Web UI is unreachable from the Nagios Server.
- The ResourceManager process is not running.

3.5.3.3.2. Possible remedies

- Check if the ResourceManager process is running.
- Check whether the Nagios Server can ping the ResourceManager server.
- Using a browser, check whether the Nagios Server can reach the ResourceManager Web UI.

3.5.3.4. ResourceManager RPC latency

This host-level alert is triggered if the ResourceManager operations RPC latency exceeds the configured critical threshold. Typically an increase in the RPC processing time increases the RPC queue length, causing the average queue wait time to increase for ResourceManager operations. It uses the Nagios check_rpcq_latency plug-in.

3.5.3.4.1. Potential causes

• A job or an application is performing too many ResourceManager operations.

3.5.3.4.2. Possible remedies

• Review the job or the application for potential bugs causing it to perform too many ResourceManager operations.

3.5.3.5. ResourceManager CPU utilization

This host-level alert is triggered if the percent of CPU utilization on the ResourceManager exceeds the configured critical threshold. This alert uses the Nagios check_snmp_load plug-in.

3.5.3.5.1. Potential causes

• Unusually high CPU utilization: Can be caused by a very unusual job/query workload, but this is generally the sign of an issue in the daemon.

• A down SNMP daemon on the ResourceManager node, producing an unknown status.

3.5.3.5.2. Possible remedies

- Use the top command to determine which processes are consuming excess CPU.
- Reset the offending process.
- Check the status of the SNMP daemon.

3.5.3.6. NodeManager process

This host-level alert is triggered if the NodeManager process cannot be established to be up and listening on the network for the configured critical threshold, given in seconds. It uses the Nagios check_tcp plug-in.

3.5.3.6.1. Potential causes

- NodeManager process is down or not responding.
- NodeManager is not down but is not listening to the correct network port/address.
- Nagios Server cannot connect to the NodeManager

3.5.3.6.2. Possible remedies

- Check if the NodeManager is running.
- Check for any errors in the NodeManager logs (/var/log/hadoop/yarn) and restart the NodeManager, if necessary.
- Use ping to check the network connection between the Nagios Server and the NodeManager host.

3.5.3.7. NodeManager health

This host-level alert checks the node health property available from the NodeManager component.

3.5.3.7.1. Potential causes

• Node Health Check script reports issues or is not configured.

3.5.3.7.2. Possible remedies

- Check in the NodeManager logs (/var/log/hadoop/yarn) for health check errors and restart the NodeManager, and restart if necessary.
- Check in the ResourceManager UI logs (/var/log/hadoop/yarn) for health check errors.

3.5.4. MapReduce2 Alerts (Hadoop 2 only)

These alerts are used to monitor MR2.

3.5.4.1. HistoryServer Web UI

This host-level alert is triggered if the HistoryServer Web UI is unreachable.

3.5.4.1.1. Potential causes

- The HistoryServer Web UI is unreachable from the Nagios Server.
- The HistoryServer process is not running.

3.5.4.1.2. Possible remedies

- Check if the HistoryServer process is running.
- Check whether the Nagios Server can ping the HistoryServer server.
- Using a browser, check whether the Nagios Server can reach the HistoryServer Web UI.

3.5.4.2. HistoryServer RPC latency

This host-level alert is triggered if the HistoryServer operations RPC latency exceeds the configured critical threshold. Typically an increase in the RPC processing time increases the RPC queue length, causing the average queue wait time to increase for NameNode operations. It uses the Nagios check_rpcq_latency plug-in.

3.5.4.2.1. Potential causes

• A job or an application is performing too many HistoryServer operations

3.5.4.2.2. Possible remedies

• Review the job or the application for potential bugs causing it to perform too many HistoryServer operations.

3.5.4.3. HistoryServer CPU utilization

This host-level alert is triggered if the percent of CPU utilization on the HistoryServer exceeds the configured critical threshold. This alert uses the Nagios check_snmp_load plug-in.

3.5.4.3.1. Potential causes

- Unusually high CPU utilization: Can be caused by a very unusual job/query workload, but this is generally the sign of an issue in the daemon.
- A down SNMP daemon on the HistoryServer node, producing an unknown status

3.5.4.3.2. Possible remedies

- Use the top command to determine which processes are consuming excess CPU.
- Reset the offending process.
- Check the status of the SNMP daemon.

3.5.4.4. HistoryServer process

This host-level alert is triggered if the HistoryServer process cannot be established to be up and listening on the network for the configured critical threshold, given in seconds. It uses the Nagios $check_tcp$ plug-in.

3.5.4.4.1. Potential causes

- HistoryServer process is down or not responding.
- HistoryServer is not down but is not listening to the correct network port/address.
- Nagios Server cannot connect to the HistoryServer,

3.5.4.4.2. Possible remedies

- Check the HistoryServer is running.
- Check for any errors in the HistoryServer logs (/var/log/hadoop/mapred) and restart the HistoryServer, if necessary
- Use ping to check the network connection between the Nagios Server and the HistoryServer host.

3.5.5. MapReduce Service Alerts (Hadoop 1 only)

These alerts are used to monitor the MapReduce service.

3.5.5.1. JobTracker RPC latency alert

This host-level alert is triggered if the JobTracker operations RPC latency exceeds the configured critical threshold. Typically an increase in the RPC processing time increases the RPC queue length, causing the average queue wait time to increase for JobTracker operations. This alert uses the Nagios check_rpcq_latency plug-in.

3.5.5.1.1. Potential causes

• A job or an application is performing too many JobTracker operations.

3.5.5.1.2. Possible remedies

• Review the job or the application for potential bugs causing it to perform too many JobTracker operations

3.5.5.2. JobTracker process

This host-level alert is triggered if the individual JobTracker process cannot be confirmed to be up and listening on the network for the configured critical threshold, given in seconds. It uses the Nagios check_tcp plug-in.

3.5.5.2.1. Potential causes

• JobTracker process is down or not responding.

- JobTracker is not down but is not listening to the correct network port/address.
- The Nagios server cannot connect to the JobTracker

3.5.5.2.2. Possible remedies

- Check if the JobTracker process is running.
- Check for any errors in the JobTracker logs (/var/log/hadoop/mapred) and restart the JobTracker, if necessary
- Use ping to check the network connection between the Nagios Server and the JobTracker host.

3.5.5.3. JobTracker Web UI

This Host-level alert is triggered if the JobTracker Web UI is unreachable.

3.5.5.3.1. Potential causes

- The JobTracker Web UI is unreachable from the Nagios Server.
- The JobTracker process is not running.

3.5.5.3.2. Possible remedies

- Check if the JobTracker process is running.
- Check whether the Nagios Server can ping the JobTracker server.
- Using a browser, check whether the Nagios Server can reach the JobTracker Web UI.

3.5.5.4. JobTracker CPU utilization

This host-level alert is triggered if the percent of CPU utilization on the JobTracker exceeds the configured critical threshold. This alert uses the Nagios check_snmp_load plug-in.

3.5.5.4.1. Potential causes

- Unusually high CPU utilization: Can be caused by a very unusual job/query workload, but this is generally the sign of an issue in the daemon.
- A down SNMP daemon on the JobTracker node, producing an unknown status.

3.5.5.4.2. Possible remedies

- Use the top command to determine which processes are consuming excess CPU
- Reset the offending processor.
- Check the status of the SNMP daemon.

3.5.5.5. HistoryServer Web UI

This host-level alert is triggered if the HistoryServer Web UI is unreachable.

3.5.5.5.1. Potential causes

- The HistoryServer Web UI is unreachable from the Nagios Server.
- The HistoryServer process is not running.
- Using a browser, check whether the Nagios Server can reach the HistoryServer Web UI.

3.5.5.5.2. Possible remedies

- Check the HistoryServer process is running.
- Check whether the Nagios Server can ping the HistoryServer server.
- Check the status of the SNMP daemon.

3.5.5.6. HistoryServer process

This host-level alert is triggered if the HistoryServer process cannot be established to be up and listening on the network for the configured critical threshold, given in seconds. It uses the Nagios check_tcp plug-in.

3.5.5.6.1. Potential causes

- The HistoryServer process is down or not responding.
- The HistoryServer is not down but is not listening to the correct network port/address.
- The Nagios Server cannot connect to the HistoryServer.

3.5.5.6.2. Possible remedies

- Check for any errors in the HistoryServer logs (/var/log/hadoop/mapred) and restart the HistoryServer, if necessary.
- Use ping to check the network connection between the Nagios Server and the HistoryServer host.

3.5.6. HBase Service Alerts

These alerts are used to monitor the HBase service.

3.5.6.1. Percent RegionServers live

This service-level alert is triggered if the configured percentage of Region Server processes cannot be determined to be up and listening on the network for the configured critical threshold. The default setting is 10% to produce a WARN alert and 30% to produce a CRITICAL alert. It uses the check_aggregate plug-in to aggregate the results of RegionServer process down checks.

3.5.6.1.1. Potential causes

• Misconfiguration or less-than-ideal configuration caused the RegionServers to crash

- Cascading failures brought on by some workload caused the RegionServers to crash
- The RegionServers shut themselves own because there were problems in the dependent services, ZooKeeper or HDFS
- GC paused the RegionServer for too long and the RegionServers lost contact with Zookeeper

3.5.6.1.2. Possible remedies

- Check the dependent services to make sure they are operating correctly.
- Look at the RegionServer log files (usually /var/log/hbase/*.log) for further information
- Look at the configuration files (/etc/hbase/conf)
- If the failure was associated with a particular workload, try to understand the workload better
- Restart the RegionServers

3.5.6.2. HBase Master process

This alert is triggered if the HBase master processes cannot be confirmed to be up and listening on the network for the configured critical threshold, given in seconds. It uses the Nagios check_tcp plug-in.

3.5.6.2.1. Potential causes

- The HBase master process is down
- The HBase master has shut itself down because there were problems in the dependent services, ZooKeeper or HDFS
- The Nagios server cannot connect to the HBase master through the network

3.5.6.2.2. Possible remedies

- Check the dependent services.
- Look at the master log files (usually /var/log/hbase/*.log) for further information
- Look at the configuration files (/etc/hbase/conf)

Use ping to check the network connection between the Nagios server and the HBase master

• Restart the master

3.5.6.3. HBase Master Web UI

This host-level alert is triggered if the HBase Master Web UI is unreachable.

3.5.6.3.1. Potential causes

- The HBase Master Web UI is unreachable from the Nagios Server.
- The HBase Master process is not running.

3.5.6.3.2. Possible remedies

- Check if the Master process is running.
- Check whether the Nagios Server can ping the HBase Master server.
- Using a browser, check whether the Nagios Server can reach the HBase Master Web UI.

3.5.6.4. HBase Master CPU utilization

This host-level alert is triggered if the percent of CPU utilization on the master host exceeds the configured critical threshold. This alert uses the Nagios check_snmp_load plug-in.

3.5.6.4.1. Potential causes

- Unusually high CPU utilization: Can be caused by a very unusual job/query workload, but this is generally the sign of an issue in the daemon.
- A down SNMP daemon on the master node, producing an unknown status.

3.5.6.4.2. Possible remedies

- Use the top command to determine which processes are consuming excess CPU
- Reset the offending process.
- Check the status of the SNMP daemon.

3.5.6.5. RegionServer process

This host-level alert is triggered if the RegionServer processes cannot be confirmed to be up and listening on the network for the configured critical threshold, given in seconds. It uses the Nagios check_tcp plug-in.

3.5.6.5.1. Potential causes

- The RegionServer process is down on the host
- The RegionServer process is up and running but not listening on the correct network port (default 60030).
- The Nagios server cannot connect to the RegionServer through the network.

3.5.6.5.2. Possible remedies

• Check for any errors in the logs (/var/log/hbase/) and restart the RegionServer process using Ambari Web.

- Run the netstat-tuplpn command to check if the RegionServer process is bound to the correct network port.
- Use ping to check the network connection between the Nagios Server and the RegionServer.

3.5.7. Hive Alerts

These alerts are used to monitor the Hive service.

3.5.7.1. Hive-Metastore status

This host-level alert is triggered if the Hive Metastore process cannot be determined to be up and listening on the network for the configured critical threshold, given in seconds. It uses the Nagios $check_tcp$ plug-in.

3.5.7.1.1. Potential causes

- The Hive Metastore service is down.
- The database used by the Hive Metastore is down.
- The Hive Metastore host is not reachable over the network.

3.5.7.1.2. Possible remedies

- Using Ambari Web, stop the Hive service and then restart it.
- Use ping to check the network connection between the Nagios server and the Hive Metastore server.

3.5.8. WebHCat Alerts

These alerts are used to monitor the WebHCat service.

3.5.8.1. WebHCat Server status

This host-level alert is triggered if the WebHCat server cannot be determined to be up and responding to client requests.

3.5.8.1.1. Potential causes

- The WebHCat server is down.
- The WebHCat server is hung and not responding.
- The WebHCat server is not reachable over the network.

3.5.8.1.2. Possible remedies

• Restart the WebHCat server using Ambari Web.

3.5.9. Oozie Alerts

These alerts are used to monitor the Oozie service.

3.5.9.1. Oozie status

This host-level alert is triggered if the Oozie server cannot be determined to be up and responding to client requests.

3.5.9.1.1. Potential causes

- The Oozie server is down.
- The Oozie server is hung and not responding.
- The Oozie server is not reachable over the network.

3.5.9.1.2. Possible remedies

• Restart the Oozie service using Ambari Web.

3.5.10. Ganglia Alerts

These alerts are used to monitor the Ganglia service.

3.5.10.1. Ganglia Server status

This host-level alert determines if the Ganglia server is running and listening on the network port. It uses the Nagios check_tcp plug-in.

3.5.10.1.1. Potential causes

- The Ganglia server process is down.
- The Ganglia server process is hanging.
- The network connection is down between the Nagios and Ganglia servers

3.5.10.1.2. Possible remedies

- Check the Ganglia server (gmetad) related log in /var/log/messages for any errors.
- Restart the Ganglia server.
- Check if ping works between Nagios and Ganglia servers.

3.5.10.2. Ganglia Monitor process

These host-level alerts check if the Ganglia monitor daemons (gmond) on the Ganglia server are running and listening on the network port. This alert uses the Nagios check_tcp plug-in.

Ganglia Monitoring daemons run for the following collections:

- Slaves
- NameNode
- HBase Master
- JobTracker (Hadoop 1 only)
- ResourceManager (Hadoop 2 only)
- HistoryServer (Hadoop 2 only)

3.5.10.2.1. Potential causes

- A gmond process is down.
- A gmond process is hanging.
- The network connection is down between the Nagios and Ganglia servers.

3.5.10.2.2. Possible remedies

- Check the gmond related log in /var/log/messages for any errors.
- Check if ping works between Nagios and Ganglia servers.

3.5.11. Nagios Alerts

These alerts are used to monitor the Nagios service.

3.5.11.1. Nagios status log freshness

This host-level alert determines if the Nagios server is updating its status log regularly. Ambari depends on the status log (/var/nagios/status.dat) to receive all the Nagios alerts.

3.5.11.1.1. Potential causes

- The Nagios server is hanging and thus not scheduling new alerts
- The file /var/nagios/status.dat does not have appropriate write permissions for the Nagios user.

3.5.11.1.2. Possible remedies

- Restart the Nagios server
- Check the permissions on /var/nagios/status.dat.
- Check /var/log/messages for any related errors.

3.5.12. ZooKeeper Alerts

These alerts are used to monitor the Zookeeper service.

3.5.12.1. Percent ZooKeeper servers live

This service-level alert is triggered if the configured percentage of ZooKeeper processes cannot be determined to be up and listening on the network for the configured critical threshold, given in seconds. It uses the check_aggregate plug-in to aggregate the results of Zookeeper process checks.

3.5.12.1.1. Potential causes

• The majority of your ZooKeeper servers are down and not responding.

3.5.12.1.2. Possible remedies

- Check the dependent services to make sure they are operating correctly.
- Check at the ZooKeeper logs files (/var/log/hadoop/zookeeper.log) for further information.
- If the failure was associated with a particular workload, try to understand the workload better.
- Restart the ZooKeeper servers from the Ambari UI.

3.5.12.2. Zookeeper Server process

This host-level alert is triggered if the ZooKeeper server process cannot be determined to be up and listening on the network for the configured critical threshold, given in seconds. It uses the Nagios $check_tcp$ plug-in.

3.5.12.2.1. Potential causes

- The ZooKeeper server process is down on the host.
- The ZooKeeper server process is up and running but not listening on the correct network port (default 2181).
- The Nagios server cannot connect to the ZooKeeper server through the network.

3.5.12.2.2. Possible remedies

- Check for any errors in the ZooKeeper logs (/var/log/hbase/) and restart the ZooKeeper process using Ambari Web.
- Run the netstat-tuplpn command to check if the ZooKeeper server process is bound to the correct network port.
- Use ping to check the network connection between the Nagios server and the ZooKeeper server.

3.5.13. Ambari Alerts

This alert is used to monitor the Ambari Agent service.

3.5.13.1. Ambari Agent process.

This host-level alert is triggered if the Ambari Agent process cannot be confirmed to be up and listening on the network for the configured critical threshold, given in seconds. It uses the Nagios $check_tcp$ plug-in.

3.5.13.1.1. Potential causes

- The Ambari Agent process is down on the host.
- The Ambari Agent process is up and running but heartbeating to the Ambari Server.
- The Ambari Agent process is up and running but is unreachable through the network from the Nagios Server.
- The Ambari Agent cannot connect to the Ambari Server through the network.

3.5.13.1.2. Possible remedies

- Check for any errors in the logs (/var/log/ambari-agent/ambari-agent.log) and restart the Ambari Agent process.
- Use ping to check the network connection between the Ambari Agent host and the Ambari Servers.